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The United States Government located the Spearfish Hatchery just south of the city 
and along Spearfish Creek; today, the hatchery is within the town's limits. The 
location is quite attractive with large rimrocks and shade trees adding to its 
pastoral appeal. This nomination 1s concerned with 4 1/4 acres of the fishery that 
contains the original hatchery building, two subsidiary structures, five rearing 
pools, and four coupled raceways.

The original one and one-half story building originally in 1898 served as a hatchery 
on the first floor; and an apartment, the second floor. Today, it's used for offices. 
It sets on a slightly terraced hill with a cliff directly behind it. The house-like 
structure is rectangular in shape with a gable roof that projects beyond the walls. 
A couple of two story towers, one at each corner of the facade, are the building's 
most imposing features. A shingled pent roof connects the first level to the second, 
while the tower's termination is be!least.

Another element of the building is an open Victorian porch with spindle columns and 
other period design features. The building rests upon an irregular stone foundation 
with white clapboard and brown shingles serving as the facing; other features include 
modillions, a main entrance with side lights, coupled windows, and a rear side entry. 
The only major exterior change of the structure was the use of asphalt shingles on 
the roof rather than the wooden.

One of the subsidiary building's design was done to be in harmony with the original 
structure. It employs a similar gable roof type, the same facing materials and 
color scheme. This 1930's structure is in close proximity to the main building 
while the second structure is not; -its use is for vehicle storage.

Four of the rearing pools vary only slightly in size and depth about three feet. 
The other is more like a pond; this is because it is larger and deeper with plenty 
of algae on the bottom. This pool is used for show and holds albino and small sized 
trout. All the pools are spherical in shape, have cut stone walls and have gateways 
to other pools. The granite used on the walls also appears on small bridges and 
other features.

Located near the central portion of this area are four coupled raceways that are 
about sixty feet in length and two feet deep. These were added to the hatchery in 
1939 by the WPA; they have cement walls and bottoms with some stone used.

The major change in the site is the creation of the five ponds rather than the one 
large one. The WPA made this change during the mid-1930's.
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The original hatchery consisted of the three largest rearing pools and the main office 
Two smaller rearing pools, the four race ways, and two subsidiary buildings were con­ 
structed in the 1930's by the WPA.

Item Number 8 -- continued , ^far Jfr ""'"'

The Fish and Wildlife'agency under the Department of Interior constructed and sponsored 
the hatchery in/'lSl&P It has continued through the years to have been run by this a- 
gency. It has been fairly substantiated that this was the only such facility built 
in the late 1890's in the Black Hills. As far as can be ascertained their are no rem­ 
nants of original machinery; mainly because little ever existed.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Spearfish Hatchery started in 1899 is one of the earliest examples of the 
conservation of natural resources (trout) in South Dakota. It is also significant 
to the economy of Spearfish and the Black Hills because many sportsmen come to 
these areas to fish which, of course, brought and still brings more money into the 
region.

Although there have been additions and changes to the hatchery, these have been done 
aesthetically and because the project was successful which tends to show the im­ 
portance of the fishery. The WPA, who was responsible for the major changes in the 
1930's, built cut stone lined pools and raceways. Also, one other building was 
constructed but done in sympathy with the original structure which remains exteriorly 
relatively unscathed by modernization.

The original hatchery structure was used as an apartment and hatchery for four 
species of trout: rainbow, brook, loch-leven, and black spotted. Today, only brown 
and rainbow are raised. These fish have been the stock for streams in Wyoming, 
Nebraska, North Dakota, but mostly for South Dakota.

In 1935 an estimated two fcnd one-half million fish from two to five inches long 
were raised. Today only 85,000, because a more modern hatchery has been built that 
does the actual hatching and a great deal of the rearing. The fishery has also 
conducted experiments on how trout develop when varieties of fish food are employed.

The Spearfish Hatchery is truly a landmark in the conservation field in South Dakota. 
It is also one of Spearfish's most noted spots and has played an important part in 
the region's economic and recreational development.
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SPEARFISH HATCHERY: Verbal Boundary Description 
South Dakota

The boundaries of the Spearfish Hatchery begin at the entrance to the 
hatchery from Fourth Street as it passes the hatchery on the east. The 
boundary continues along the western edge of the public right-of-way to 
a point where the line encounters a small stream and follows that stream 
for several yards where it encounters a line due east of a point thirty 
feet north of the fish hatchery garage. The line continues west past 
that point where it encounters a line running north and south and passing 
one hundred feet west of the fish hatchery's main building. The line 
follows this line south until it intersects with a point 105 feet from 
the southwest corner of the main building. At this point, the line turns 
east, southeast passing the southern most rearing pool five feet beyond 
its southern most edge and continues on to intersect with the public 
right-of-way on the west edge of Fourth Street. Here the line turns 
north again following the public right-of-way line to the main gate.
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